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March 6, 2015 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

Addendum No. 1/RFP Y15-1022-CH 
 

DISASTER RECOVERY AND DEBRIS REMOVAL 
 

Proposal Opening Date:  March 17, 2015 
 
This addendum is hereby incorporated into the bid documents of the project referenced 
above. The following items are clarifications, corrections, additions, deletions and/or 
revisions to and shall take precedence over the original documents.  Underlining 
indicates additions, deletions are indicated by strikethrough. 
 

1. The Proposal Opening Date shall remain March 17, 2015 at 2:00 P.M.  
 

2. Note the following REVISION to the 1st Paragraph under Instruction to Proposers,  
on Page 1 as follows:   
 

 Firms or companies desiring to provide services, as described in the Scope of 
 Services, shall submit sealed proposals, one (1) original, nine (9) eight (8) copies 
 and one (1) electronic copy on CD or USB drive not later than 2:00 PM local 
 time,  March 17, 2015, to the Orange County Procurement Division, Internal 
 Operations Centre II, 400 E. South Street, 2nd Floor, Orlando, Florida 32801, 
 (407) 836-5635.  
 

3. Note the following REVISION to the Attachment B - Fee Schedule as follows: 
 
Delete:  Attachment B – Fee Schedule, Pages B-1 through B-15 issued in the 
Request for Proposals, dated February 13, 2015. 
 
Replace with:  Attachment B – REVISED Fee Schedule, Pages Revised B-1 
through Revised B-15 issued in Addendum #1. 
 
 

4. The following are responses to questions received by interested 
proposers: 
 
a. Question:  Page B-1, item 1B:  This shows that contractor is responsible for 

storing, processing, management and final disposal of debris at Citizen Sites.  
I explained that contractors do not normally process woody debris nor white 
goods delivered to the site, at the site.  The statement as written requires the 
contractor process debris at these locations and take straight to final 
disposal.  The only debris that will potentially be hauled straight to final 
disposal from the Citizen sites will be C&D that cannot be processed. Can this 
information be clarified?  
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Answer:  Refer to the Revised Fee Schedule included in Addendum #1.  Item 
1B has been revised.   

 
b. Question: Page 20 of the RFP talks to Marine Debris Removal, however we 

did not see a line item for marine debris removal or vessel removal within the 
pricing schedule.  If those items will be part of the scope of work, will an 
addition be made to the pricing schedule to include these items?  
 
Answer: Refer to the Revised Fee Schedule included in Addendum #1.  This 
item has been added to Revised Fee Schedule/Other Fees on Page Revised 
B-14.    

 
c. Question: The second paragraph on page 16 states that a contractor 

representative is required to report to the Orange County Emergency 
Operations Center within 6 hours after notification of need.  Our rep was told 
that contractor's would not be allowed in the EOC, so will the reporting 
location be adjusted to a new location?  

Answer:  The Contractor will report at the Orange County Emergency 
Operations Center (EOC), but may be stationed/relocated to the Public Works 
DOC by County staff. 

d. Question:  Proposal Format – Qualifications of Firm – 4. Pg. 12:  “Experience 
in all aspects of emergency debris management to include procurement, 
operation, planning, contract management and accounting systems.” Can the 
County clarify what they mean by “procurement” and “contract management?” 
 
Answer:   Procurement and Contract Management are defined as an ability 
to demonstrate an understanding of how to document, application of pay 
items, the ability to manage sub-contractors (material contractors, equipment 
contractors) and labor.  Management of payroll, scheduling, accurate 
accounts and invoicing tracking and tracking resources and understand 
general terms and restrictions outlined in the scope of services. 
 

e. Question:  Pg. 23-24 of the RFP, the following language appears.  
 
“M.  DUMP/TIPPING FEES All dump/tipping  fees  shall  be  reimbursed  at   
their  actual  cost  with  proper documentation.” 

  
“N.   DISPOSAL OF REDUCED DEBRIS When the County requires 
chipping/grinding as a method of debris reduction, it is the Contractor’s 
responsibility to acceptably dispose of the chips or mulch, at no additional 
cost to the County.  For disposal, the chips or mulch shall be put to some 
beneficial use.” 

  
There appears to be a conflict as Item “M” states that all tipping fees will be 
reimbursed and Item “N” states that no tipping fees will be reimbursed for 
chips or mulch.  Can the County clarify this? Is it the County’s intention that all 
tipping fees are a pass thru?   
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Answer: Yes, tipping fees when realized are a pass through.  However, 
chips/mulch shall not be disposed of at the landfill.  Alternate disposal 
processes should be sought out and used.   

  
f. Question: Fee Schedule, Item 1B. Citizen Site Storage Processing 

Management and Final Disposal:  Would the County consider providing 
additional scope to this item?  Generally this debris is transported by the 
Contractor from the Citizen Site area to the TDSRS.  Who will manage the 
collection of data from citizens at the Citizen Site?   

 
 Answer:  It will be the responsibility of the Debris Monitor Consultant in 

conjunction with the Debris Recovery and Removal Contractor.  Refer to the 
Revised Fee Schedule in Addendum #1. 

 
g. Question:  Attachment B - Fee Schedule Section 2B Hazardous Limbs states 

different pricing for different sized limbs.  What rate would apply if one tree 
has both limbs 2 inches up to 4 inches and  4 inches up to 8 inches. We 
request that the County consider utilizing a single rate per tree. 
 
Answer:  Refer to the Revised Fee Schedule in Addendum #1 
 

h. Question:  Attachment B – Fee Schedule, B-2 Is the scope for category 2A 
and 2B to place the Hazardous Stumps greater than 24” and Hazardous 
Limbs greater than 2” on the ROW after extraction, or shall they be hauled to 
the TDSRS. 

                 
Answer:  They should be removed to the TDSR as specified on Page 21, 
Paragraph 5.  The price shall include removal, loading, hauling to TDSR for 
further processing. 

 
i. Question:  RFP #Y15-1022-CH requires each bidder to provide a Litigation 

Statement as to any “litigation and/or judgments entered by or against any 
local, state or federal entity” or that it has had no such litigation and/or 
“entered against such entities.”  Is this question restricted solely to local, state 
or federal governmental entities or does it include any litigation and/or 
judgments by or with any individuals or entities? 
 
Answer:  The Litigation Statement on Page B-17 is asking for the proposer if 
applicable, to submit a summary and disposition of individual cases of 
litigation and/or judgments entered by or against any local, state or federal 
entity, by any state or federal court, during the past ten (10) years. 
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j. Question: The top row of the Attachment B, page B-6 thru B-14 Cost 
Proposal Forms have Hourly rate/Unit of Measure in one column and Day 
Rate/Cost in another column. I can assume which of the 2 items you might 
want for each line item but many line items can be either; is it possible you 
can define which of the 2 you want for each line item, so all submitters price it 
similarly? 
 
Answer:  The Proposals will be evaluated for the Fee Criteria based on 
Revised Pages B-1 through B-5.  Having an hourly rate and a daily rate for 
items on Revised Pages B-6 through B-14 the County is able to take 
advantage of possibly reduced daily rates. 
 

a. Question: The County encourages use of disadvantaged business 
enterprises in consideration of subcontracting needs.  No scoring criteria is 
applied to DBE utilization.  Will the County be using any DBE utilization, or 
lack of utilization, in proposal scoring, evaluation or tie-breaking decisions? 
 
Answer:  The Scoring Criteria for the Disaster Debris Monitoring Services is 
as follows: 
 

 CRITERIA WEIGHT 
 

    Qualifications of Firm  25 
     Qualification of Staff  25 
    Technical Approach  15 
    Fee Schedule  35 
    TOTAL  100 

 
 

b. Question: During the pre-bid it was mentioned that all firms are to be 
registered with the FDOT Equal Opportunity Office.  Do large businesses 
need to be registered with this particular FDOT office? 
 
Answer:  No, that is not a requirement. 
 
 

c. Question:  Can you provide guidance on how to complete Exhibit A, Leased 
Employee Affidavit?  We do not use an employee leasing company, and all of 
our employees are covered under workman’s compensation provided by the 
company.  
 
Answer: Exhibit A, Leased Employee Affidavit is applicable when an 
employee leasing company provides the workers’ compensation coverage. 
 
 

d. Question:  Does the County currently have a Disaster Debris Management 
Plan that could be shared with potential bidders. 
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Answer:  A disaster debris management plan will be shared with the selected 
contractors/consultants at the annual kick off meeting.  
 

 
5.  All other terms and conditions of the IFB remain the same. 
 
6. The Proposer shall acknowledge receipt of this addendum by completing the 

applicable   section in the solicitation or by completion of the acknowledgement 
information on the addendum.  Either form of acknowledgement must be 
completed and returned not later than the date and time for receipt of the 
proposal. 

 
Receipt acknowledged by: 
 
__________________________________ _______________________  
Authorized Signature     Date Signed 
 
_____________________________________ 
Title 
 
______________________________________  
Name of Firm            
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